

# United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys  
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Volume 23

September 19, 1975

No. 19

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
COMMENDATIONS	847
NOTICE	849
ANTITRUST DIVISION	
SHERMAN ACT	
Court Rules Dissolved Corporation	
Remaining Viable for any Purpose	
is Liable for its Criminal Actions.	
	<u>United States v. Great Western</u>
	<u>Sugar Company, et al.</u> 851
	<u>United States v. Great Western</u>
	<u>Sugar Company, et al.</u> 851
	<u>United States v. California</u>
	<u>and Hawaiian Sugar Company,</u>
	<u>et al.</u> 851
CIVIL DIVISION	
CONSTITUTIONAL LAW	
C.A.D.C. Upholds United States	
Army's Durg Control Program.	
	<u>The Committee for GI Rights</u>
	<u>v. Callaway</u> 853
FEDERAL RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE--COSTS	
C.A.D.C Awards the Government	
Costs for 50 Copies of Our	
Briefs and 25 Copies of an	
Appendix.	
	<u>Public Citizen, et al. v.</u>
	<u>Sampson</u> 854
STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS	
Ninth Circuit Holds that	
Six-Year Rather Than Three-	
Year Statute of Limitations	
Applies to Suits Brought by	
the United States Against	
Transferees of Fraudulent	
Conveyances.	
	<u>United States v. Neidorf,</u>
	<u>et al.</u> 855

## CRIMINAL DIVISION

## THREATS AGAINST THE PRESIDENT

Solicitor General Argues that Defendant who Voluntarily Makes a Threat Against the President of the United States, comprehending the Meaning of his Words, Is Guilty of an Offense Under 18 U.S.C. § 871(a) If a Reasonable Person Would Conclude that His Declaration Constituted a Serious Expression of His Apparent Intention to Kill or Injure the President of the United States.

George Herman Rogers v. United States 856

## CUSTOMS - INDICTMENTS

Indictment Charging a Violation of 18 U.S.C. 545 Must Mention Criminal Forfeiture or Entire Indictment is Defective. United States v. Arthur E. Hall 857

## LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION

## ENVIRONMENT: CLEAN AIR ACT

Jurisdiction to Challenge State Implementation Plan Limited to Suit Under Section 307 of Clean Air Act. West Penn Power Company v. Train 860

## ENVIRONMENT

Highways; Parkland not Actually or Constructively Taken Where Park Developed After Road Location Established; Environmental Impact Statement Must Discuss Design Alternatives that Lessen Impact; Injunction Against Only Part of Proposed Construction; Laches; Relocation Assistance Planning in Stages Approved. ACORN, et al. v. Claude S. Brinegar, et al. 861

ENVIRONMENT: NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT  
 Delegation of EIS Preparation;  
 Necessity of Supplemental EIS;  
 Dismissal of Preliminary Injunction.

Essex County Preservation  
 Association, et al. v. Bruce  
 Campbell, et al. 862

## APPENDIX

## FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

RULE 11. Pleas.	<u>Lawrence D'Allesandro v. U.S.</u>	865
	<u>U.S. v. Richard Y. Garcia</u>	866
RULE 12(b)(1). Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Defenses and Objections which May be Raised.	<u>U.S. v. Robert A. Mann</u>	869
RULE 12(b)(4). Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections. The Motion Raising Defenses and Objections. Hearing on Motion.	<u>U.S. v. Robert A. Mann</u>	871
RULE 23(a). Trial by Jury or by the Court. Trial By Jury.	<u>U.S. v. Robert A. Mann</u>	873
RULE 27. Proof of Official Record.	<u>U.S. v. Kenneth R. Farris</u>	875
	<u>U.S. v. Harry Glover</u>	875
RULE 31(d). Verdict Poll of Jury.	<u>U.S. v. Lazaro Visuna</u>	877
RULE 32(d). Sentence and Judgment. Withdrawal of Plea of Guilty.	<u>Lawrence D'Allesandro v. U.S.</u>	879
RULE 35. Correction or Reduction of Sentence.	<u>Lawrence D'Allesandro v. U.S.</u>	881
	<u>U.S. v. Ersel Stollings</u>	881

## COMMENDATION

Assistant United States Attorney Calvin Pryor, Middle District of Alabama, has been commended by J. Stanley Pottinger, Assistant Attorney General, Civil Rights Division, for his successful efforts to assure the effectiveness of court ordered hiring and equal employee treatment plan stemming from United States v. City of Montgomery.

Assistant United States Attorney James W. Kerr, Jr., Western District of Texas, has been commended by John B Langer, Internal Revenue Service, District Director for South Dakota, for his outstanding work in meeting a defense of selective prosecution and thereby obtaining a guilty plea from a disbarred lawyer charged with two counts of failure to file tax returns.

Assistant United States Attorney Benjamin F. Baker, Northern District of Oklahoma, has been commended by H.S. Knight, Director, United States Secret Service, for his outstanding efforts in connection with the prosecution of sixteen defendants involved in manufacturing and passing counterfeit Federal Reserve Notes.

Assistant United States Attorney David Fisher, District of Colorado, has been commended by Richard W. Velde, Administrator, Law Enforcement Assistance Administration, for his work in effecting a denial of a motion for a TRO and preliminary injunction in a matter involving large sums of LEAA grand funds.

Assistant United States Attorney Charles H. Turner, District of Oregon, has received a commendation from John W. O'Rourke, Special Agent in Charge, Portland, Oregon, Federal Bureau of Investigation, for obtaining a conviction in a very difficult kidnapping prosecution, United States v. William Earl Hutchings.

Assistant United States Attorney Ronald A. Lebowitz, District of Arizona, has been commended by Charles T. Johnston, the victim of extortion, for his extraordinary efforts in obtaining convictions in United States v. Frank Joseph Casciola.

Assistant United States Attorney Michael A. Rhine, Eastern District of Virginia, has been commended by Admiral A. W. Walton, Jr., Commander, Naval Facilities Engineering Command, for the outstanding judgment, legal advice and guidance which he rendered to the Department of the Navy in defending the Secretary of the Navy in Lincoln Services, Ltd. v. J. William Middendorf, II.

Assistant United States Attorney David P. Curnow, Southern District of California, has been commended by Richard L. Thornburgh, Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, for his outstanding performance in connection with the investigation and prosecution of United States v. Walter and United States v. Adams.

United States Attorney Harold M. Fong, District of Hawaii, and Murray Stein, Attorney, Government Regulations Section, Criminal Division, have been commended by Kyokichi Miyachi, Commissioner, Prefectural Police Headquarters, Fukuoka, City. Kenzo Tsuchikane, Superintendent Supervisor Criminal Investigation Bureau, National Police Academy, Tokyo, and Seitaro Asanuma, Commissioner General, National Police Academy, Tokyo for their success in extraditing a homicide suspect who had fled Japan for Hawaii where he was a permanent resident. This was the first post-NWII case relying on the U.S.-Japan Extradition Treaty.

Mr. Justin W. Williams, Assistant United States Attorney, Eastern District of Virginia, has been commended by Mr. William E. Cummings, United States Attorney, Eastern District of Virginia, for his outstanding and successful efforts in the case of United States v. Konstinof, et al. Mr. Williams directed the investigation and conducted the trial of multiple defendants involved in a bombing extortion plot, and the final indictment centered around the Hobbs Act and the conspiracy sections therein.

Assistant United States Attorney Charles D. Cabaniss, Northern District of Texas, has been commended by Edward H. Levi, Attorney General, and by Ralph B. Guy, Jr., United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Michigan and Chairman of the Attorney General's Advisory Committee of United States Attorneys for his excellent leadership and outstanding contribution to the Department in his capacity as Institute Director of the Attorney General's Advocacy Institute. Harold R. Tyler, Jr., Deputy Attorney General, presented him with an Award for Superior Performance as an Assistant United States Attorney.

\*

\*

\*

\*

#### NOTICE

Assistant United States Attorney Melvin S. Kracov, District of New Jersey, has been appointed Institute Director of the Attorney General's Advocacy Institute. Any questions or suggestions regarding professional training may be directed to him. Room 4410, Main Building. Phone: 202-739-4104.

ANTITRUST DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

COURT RULES DISSOLVED CORPORATION REMAINING VIABLE FOR ANY PURPOSE IS LIABLE FOR ITS CRIMINAL ACTIONS.

United States v. Great Western Sugar Company, et al.,  
(Cr. 74-830; July 31, 1975; DJ 60-104-34)

United States v. Great Western Sugar Company, et al.,  
(Civ. 74-2674; July 31, 1975; DJ 60-104-35)

United States v. California and Hawaiian Sugar Company, et al., (Cr. 74-829; July 31, 1975; DJ 60-104-31)

On July 31, 1975, five of the six corporate defendants in the two criminal cases identified above (each relating to a separate regional market) changed their plea from not guilty to nolo contendere. The remaining defendant in both cases is the C&H Sugar Company. At the appearance to change pleas, the five corporate defendants did not oppose imposition of the applicable maximum (\$50,000) fine and waived any pre-sentence report. Accordingly, Judge Robert H. Schnacke sentenced the defendants as follows:

Holly Sugar Co.	\$100,000
	(indicted in both criminal cases)
Great Western Sugar Co.	\$ 50,000
American Crystal Sugar Co. (New Jersey)	\$ 50,000
Amalgamated Sugar Co.	\$ 50,000
Union Sugar Division of Consolidated Foods	\$ 50,000

In the criminal and civil Midwest sugar cases, one of the named defendants was American Crystal Sugar Company, a dissolved New Jersey corporation. The agreement to sell Crystal's assets to another corporation had been made in principle in December 1972 before the company was served with a Grand Jury subpoena duces tecum. At that time, the agreement was amended to account for possible liability arising from the Grand Jury investigation. The sale was completed and the defendant, although continuing for a few months, was thereafter dissolved. The dissolved corporation was subsequently indicted and named in the civil complaint.

Crystal immediately filed motions for dismissal in the criminal case and for summary judgment in the civil case. The motion was denied by Judge Schnacke in the criminal case. The court relied principally on Melrose Distillers v. U.S., 359 U.S. 271 (1959), in ruling that a dissolved corporation could be held criminally responsible for its prior acts. The court rejected the defendant's argument that the wording of the New Jersey corporate dissolution statute only allowed dissolved New Jersey corporations to be sued in civil actions. Judge Schnacke held that where a dissolved corporation remains viable for any purpose it remains liable for its criminal actions.

American Crystal did succeed in its motion in the civil case. There it argued that the injunctive relief requested in the complaint against a dissolved corporation would be meaningless. The Government argued that there was a nexus between the present American Crystal and the dissolved defendant sufficient to allow injunctive relief against the dissolved defendant to bind its successor. The thrust of the argument was that (a) the principal pricing executive (and prominent conspirator) of the dissolved corporation was also the top executive of the successor corporation, and (b) all parties to the agreement were aware of the Grand Jury investigation and changed their agreement in anticipation of liability therefrom. The Court granted the motion, dismissed the complaint against Crystal and invited the Government to amend its complaint to add the present American Crystal.

Trial of defendant C&H in the Chicago-west case (Cr. No. 830 RHS) will begin November 10, 1975.

Staff: Robert Staal, Mark Anderson, Christopher Crook and Glenda Jermanovich  
(Antitrust Division)

\*

\*

\*

CIVIL DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Rex E. Lee

COURT OF APPEALS

CONSTITUTIONAL LAW

C.A.D.C. UPHOLDS UNITED STATES ARMY'S DRUG CONTROL PROGRAM.

The Committee for GI Rights v. Callaway (C.A.D.C., No. 74-1285, decided September 2, 1975; D.J. 145-4-2304).

This case was brought as a class action on behalf of 145,000 GIs in the United States Army's European Command, to challenge several aspects of the military's drug control program in Europe. The district court ruled against the military on two major issues: (1) the validity of the Army's warrantless searches for drugs (including strip searches and body cavity searches) under the Fourth Amendment; and (2) the scope of procedural due process requirements for the imposition of various non-medical administrative sanctions (such as denial of pass privileges) used in military drug rehabilitation programs.

On our appeal, the court of appeals reversed and upheld the constitutional validity of the drug control program. The warrantless drug inspections without probable cause were valid, the court ruled, since (a) the increased incidence of drug abuse in the armed forces threatened military readiness and efficiency; (b) "the expectation of privacy is different in the military than it is in civilian life"; (c) unannounced drug inspections seemed to be the most effective means of identifying drug users; (d) the drug inspections were conducted so as to "guard the dignity and privacy of the soldier insofar as practical" and were designed primarily to ensure military fitness by removing dangerous drugs, not to punish law violators; and (e) a warrant requirement would be unduly burdensome and might undermine the effectiveness of the drug inspections. The court of appeals also ruled that, in view of the military's need for prompt action to cut off access to illegal drugs and the availability of prompt administrative complaint procedures, due process did not require a prior hearing before imposition by the Army of administrative restrictions.

Staff: Edwin E. Huddleson (Civil Division)

FEDERAL RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE--COSTS

C.A.D.C. AWARDS THE GOVERNMENT COSTS FOR 50 COPIES OF OUR BRIEFS AND 25 COPIES OF AN APPENDIX.

Public Citizen, et al. v. Sampson (C.A.D.C., Nos. 74-1849, 74-1619, decided June 16, 1975; D.J. 27-7751 and 27-7805).

After we prevailed on the merits in the court of appeals, we filed our bill of costs against the losing party for reimbursement for 50 copies of our briefs and 25 copies of the appendix in these cases. Our opponent objected, contending that the number of copies, for which we claimed costs, exceeded the number required for filing purposes in the court of appeals. He also objected to the item in the Justice Department's standard printing bill which includes a fee of \$1.00 per page for typing the final "camera" copy (final draft) of the brief. We responded, contending that this number of briefs and appendices were "necessary" copies for the Government within the meaning of Rule 39(c), Fed. R. App. P., and that the typing charge was a legitimate cost of producing briefs by the multi-lith process under the Rule. The court of appeals in two per curiam orders, accepting our position, granted our bills of cost.

Staff: Thomas S. Moore (Civil Division)

STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

NINTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT SIX-YEAR RATHER THAN THREE-YEAR STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS APPLIES TO SUITS BROUGHT BY THE UNITED STATES AGAINST TRANSFEREES OF FRAUDULENT CONVEYANCES.

United States v. Neidorf, et al. (C.A. 9, No. 73-2993, decided August 4, 1975; D.J. 77-65-115).

This suit was brought by the United States against former officers and shareholders of an insolvent corporation to recover \$1 million in unsatisfied government judgments against the corporation. The government's complaint alleged that while renegotiation claims for excessive profits were pending against the corporation, the defendants caused it to distribute to themselves as shareholders \$2 million in dividends through a dummy corporation, thereby rendering the corporation without sufficient assets to satisfy the government's claims. The district court held that the government's complaint, which was filed more than three years but less than six years after the cause of action had accrued, was founded upon tort and thus barred by the statute of limitations applicable to tort actions (28 U.S.C. 2415(b)).

In reversing on our appeal and remanding for trial, the Ninth Circuit held that the alleged obligations of the defendants as transferees of fraudulent conveyances and distributees of improper dividends are essentially quasi-contractual liabilities, as to which the six-year statute of limitations of 28 U.S.C. 2415(a) applies.

Staff: Ronald R. Glancz (Civil Division)

CRIMINAL DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Richard L. Thornburgh

SUPREME COURTTHREATS AGAINST THE PRESIDENT

SOLICITOR GENERAL ARGUES THAT DEFENDANT WHO VOLUNTARILY MAKES A THREAT AGAINST THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES, COMPREHENDING THE MEANING OF HIS WORDS, IS GUILTY OF AN OFFENSE UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 871(a) IF A REASONABLE PERSON WOULD CONCLUDE THAT HIS DECLARATION CONSTITUTED A SERIOUS EXPRESSION OF HIS APPARENT INTENTION TO KILL OR INJURE THE PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES.

George Herman Rogers v. United States, 43 U.S.L.W. 4763 (U.S., June 17, 1975) (No. 73-6336).

The defendant was convicted on five counts of an indictment charging him with threatening to kill and injure the President. The case arose from the following set of facts. At 6:30 in the morning the petitioner entered a Holiday Inn, began acting strangely, laughing, and attempting to engage others in conversation. Opposing President Nixon's visit to China, he announced that he was going to Washington to "whip Nixon's ass" or "to kill him in order to save the United States." He also stated that he was Jesus Christ and that the Chinese had a bomb that was known only to him.

Since the trial judge had communicated with the jury outside the presence of petitioner's counsel and had accepted a guilty verdict with a recommendation of extreme mercy in circumstances casting doubt on the unqualified nature of the verdict, the Solicitor General confessed error and the Supreme Court reversed. Nevertheless the Solicitor General did argue in the Government's brief that the statute was appropriately applied.

The test under the statute is an objective one:

A threat is knowingly made, if the maker of it comprehends the meaning of the words uttered by him . . . .

And a threat is willfully made, if in addition to comprehending his words, the maker voluntarily and intentionally utters [the words] as the declaration of an apparent determination to carry them into execution.

Ragansky v. United States, 253 F. 643, 654 (7th Cir. 1918). This objective requirement is reinforced by the portion of the trial judge's charge taken from Roy v. United States, 416 F.2d 874, 877-78 (9th Cir. 1969), requiring the jury to find beyond a reasonable doubt

that the defendant intentionally [made] a statement, written or oral, in a context or under such circumstances wherein a reasonable person would foresee that the statement would be interpreted by those to

whom the maker communicates the statement as a serious expression of an intention to inflict bodily harm upon or to take the life of the President, and that the statement not be the result of mistake, duress, or coercion.

The effect of the Ragansky-Ray instruction is that the jury must find that a reasonable person hearing the declaration would conclude that it constituted a serious expression of his apparent intention to kill or injure the President.

In refuting appellant's contention that specific intent to implement the threat is an element of proof under 18 U.S.C. 871, the Solicitor General argued that (1) the statute on its face does not impose the requirement of a subjective intent to carry out the statute, and (2) the end sought by the statute was, quoting Watts v. United States, 394 U.S. 705, 707 (1969), "in protecting the safety of [the country's] Chief Executive and in allowing him to perform his duties without interference from threats of physical violence." Threats objectively viewed as serious and sincere, compel a response by those charged with protecting the President and necessarily divert federal resources. Even if the threat were nothing more than a hoax, the harm would nevertheless occur.

The Solicitor General analogized to the situation in which a person indicates that he will burn a building in five minutes. Although he might have no intention to start a fire, a harm has occurred because the serious nature of the threat requires that available resources respond to it. The government therefore argued that a true threat is punishable as beyond the first amendment because the utterance itself produces the evil that Congress may prohibit.

Staff: Allan Abbott Tuttle (formerly with the Office of the Solicitor General);  
Marshall Tamor Golding (Criminal Division).

#### COURT OF APPEALS

#### CUSTOMS - INDICEMENTS

INDICEMENT CHARGING A VIOLATION OF 18 U.S.C. 545 MUST MENTION CRIMINAL FORFEITURE OR ENTIRE INDICEMENT IS DEFECTIVE

United States v. Arthur E. Hall, \_\_\_\_\_ F.2d \_\_\_\_\_ (9th Cir. No. 74-3081, decided June 18, 1975; D.J. No. 54-82-234 )

Arthur Hall was charged in a one count indictment with a violation of 18 U.S.C. 545 which reads in pertinent part:

Whoever knowingly and willfully, with intent to defraud the United

States, smuggles or clandestinely introduces into the United States any merchandise which should have been invoiced . . . .

Shall be fined not more than \$10,000 or imprisoned not more than five years or both.

Merchandise introduced into the United States in violation of this section.... shall be forfeited to the United States.

The indictment specifically charged that:

On or about March 15, 1974, within the Western district of Washington, Arthur E. Hall, willfully and knowingly and with intent to defraud the United States of America, did smuggle and clandestinely introduce into the United States of America merchandise which should have been invoiced, that is two (2) ladies diamond rings of an approximate domestic value of \$14,000.000. All in violation of Title 18 U.S.C. 545.

Hall made a Motion to Dismiss the Indictment claiming it was defective because it failed to comply with Rule 7(c) (2) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure which states:

When an offense charged may result in a criminal forfeiture, the indictment or information shall allege the extent of the interest or property subject to forfeiture.

The district judge denied Hall's motion, concluding that the failure of the indictment to mention criminal forfeiture meant that such a penalty could not be imposed if Hall was convicted of the smuggling charge, but that the indictment was otherwise valid. Hall was eventually tried and convicted of the charge set forth in the indictment. Hall appealed to the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit which vacated his judgment of conviction and remanded the case to the district court with directions to dismiss the indictment. The court held that the failure of the indictment to mention criminal forfeiture vitiated Hall's judgment of conviction on the smuggling charge, rather than simply prohibiting the Government from seeking criminal forfeiture of the diamond rings as the district judge had ruled. The basis for the court's decision was its conclusion that Rule 7(c) (2) is applicable to the criminal forfeiture provision of 18 U.S.C. 545, and the failure of the indictment to mention the potential criminal forfeiture deprived Hall of the mandatory notice to which he was entitled under the rule and the concomitant opportunity to defend against such a forfeiture.

A Petition for Rehearing with a suggestion for Rehearing En Banc has

VOL. 23

SEPTEMBER 19, 1975

No. 19

been filed with the Ninth Circuit requesting reconsideration of this decision.

Specifically, the petition urges that the failure of an indictment charging violation of 18 U.S.C. 545 to mention the possibility of criminal forfeiture should at most preclude the Government from seeking criminal forfeiture of the smuggled merchandise, but should not in any way affect a smuggling conviction. In the meantime, however, it is suggested that all future indictments charging violations of 18 U.S.C. 545 specifically mention the possibility of criminal forfeiture. Consideration should also be given to obtaining superseding indictments for those presently outstanding which do not mention the possibility of criminal forfeiture.

Staff: United States Attorney, Stan Pitkin  
Assistant U.S. Attorney, Robert H. Westinghouse  
(W.D. Washington)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION  
Acting Assistant Attorney Walter Kiechel, Jr.

COURT OF APPEALS

ENVIRONMENT; CLEAN AIR ACT

JURISDICTION TO CHALLENGE STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN  
LIMITED TO SUIT UNDER SECTION 307 OF CLEAN AIR ACT.

West Penn Power Company v. Train (C.A. 3, No. 74-  
2050, July 16, 1975; D.J. 90-5-2-3-405).

On September 13, 1973, the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency, Region III, sent West Penn a notice, pursuant to Section 113(a)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 1857c-8(a)(1), that Boiler No. 33 at West Penn's Mitchell Power Station was in violation of the regulations of the Pennsylvania implementation plan limiting emissions of sulfur dioxide and particulates.

On December 20, 1973, West Penn filed suit in the District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania to enjoin federal enforcement of the Pennsylvania implementation plan. The district court dismissed the action for lack of jurisdiction in an order dated June 19, 1974. 378 F.Supp. 941. In its opinion, the district court found that, insofar as West Penn was attacking the Pennsylvania plan, it had waived its rights to review in the federal courts by not filing a timely petition to review the Environmental Protection Agency's action in approving the plan, pursuant to Section 307(b)(1) of the Clean Air Act. It further found that the state-granted variance was ineffective to stay federal enforcement of the implementation plan because Section 110 of the Act, 42 U.S.C. sec. 1857c-5, provides that variances must be submitted by the Governor of the State to EPA and approved by EPA before they take effect at the federal level.

West Penn appealed the order of dismissal. The Third Circuit affirmed the lower court's opinion on July 16, 1975, holding that no jurisdictional basis existed for West Penn's challenge to the Pennsylvania plan in the district court. The opinion further held that West Penn's attack on the plan could only be brought in the court of appeals

pursuant to Section 307 of the Act and that its attack on the notice of violation could only be pursued in defense to an enforcement action when and if it was initiated by EPA.

Staff: John E. Varnum (Land and Natural Resources Division).

## DISTRICT COURTS

### ENVIRONMENT

HIGHWAYS; PARKLAND NOT ACTUALLY OR CONSTRUCTIVELY TAKEN WHERE PARK DEVELOPED AFTER ROAD LOCATION ESTABLISHED; ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT MUST DISCUSS DESIGN ALTERNATIVES THAT LESSEN IMPACT; INJUNCTION AGAINST ONLY PART OF PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION; LACHES; RELOCATION ASSISTANCE PLANNING IN STAGES APPROVED.

ACORN, et al. v. Claude S. Brinegar, et al. (Civil No. LR-73-C-292, E.D. Ark., July 28, 1975; D.J. 90-1-4-824).

Plaintiffs sought to enjoin construction of I-630 through the City of Little Rock, Arkansas. They alleged that the EIS on the project was deficient as a matter of content and because it was prepared principally by the State. They alleged that two parks would be taken without the findings required by Section 4(f) of the Transportation Act and that additional public hearings are required. Finally, they alleged that plans for relocation of persons displaced by the construction are inadequate because the plans prepared to date specifically relate to only a portion of the people to be displaced.

The court rejected the 4(f) contention on the ground that no use of parkland, actual or constructive, had been shown. Placing the burden of proof clearly on the plaintiffs the court concluded that insufficient evidence of adverse impact on the parks lying near the route of the highway had been presented. In one instance a substantial volume of traffic already passes near the park and in the other instance the park was created after the location of the highway had been set.

Turning to compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance Act, the court found that planning the relocation process in yearly stages is permissible under the Act since it would provide for an orderly and factually meaningful program. It is not necessary to plan the relocation of

persons whose displacement would not occur in the immediate future. The court noted that the general problem of relocation was discussed in the EIS prepared on the highway.

In considering the EIS the court rejected the contention that responsibility for preparation of the statement had been improperly delegated. As to the content of the EIS, the court noted initially that a great deal of planning had already been done, with inevitable commitments and reliance, before the EIS was prepared. The court found the statement generally adequate. The advanced stage of development rendered unreasonable all alternative locations and hence they need not have been discussed.

But the court found, in part based on expert testimony, that alternative designs are possible which might significantly alter the environmental impact of the highway. These alternatives were required to be discussed in a supplemental EIS which, to be meaningful, must be considered in a new public hearing under 23 U.S.C. sec. 128.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney O. H. Storey, III (E.D. Ark.).

ENVIRONMENT; NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT

DELEGATION OF EIS PREPARATION; NECESSITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL EIS; DISMISSAL OF PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION.

Essex County Preservation Association, et al. v. Bruce Campbell, et al. (Civil Action No. 74-2680-M, D. Mass., July 9, 1975; D. J. 90-1-4-983).

Suit was brought to enjoin widening and improvement of Interstate Route I-95 north of Boston between Danvers and Newburyport, Massachusetts, on the ground that the EIS failed to meet the requirements of NEPA. In ruling on plaintiffs' motion for preliminary injunction, the court held that, in determining whether NEPA has been violated, the review of the EIS is restricted to a determination of whether procedural requirements were satisfied.

As regards plaintiffs' specific allegations, the court held that the effects of the energy crisis were too speculative and thus did not have to be considered in formulating the EIS. The court refused to review traffic counts on the ground that it was the court's duty to see that they

were discussed, but not to review their effect. Failure to approve a State's action plan pursuant to 23 U.S.C. sec. 109(h) and 23 C.F.R. sec. 795 prior to final federal approval of the project was held not sufficiently important to warrant an injunction. However, delegation of the EIS preparation to a state-employed private consulting firm that is also the design engineer for a portion of the project was held to be improper, not because of delegation per se but rather due to the possibility of a conflict of interest. Furthermore, subsequent to circulation of the draft EIS, the Governor of Massachusetts announced a moratorium on construction of expressways (including I-95) in the Boston area south of the project. Although the effect of the moratorium was evaluated in the final EIS, the court found that circulation of a supplemental EIS was necessary.

Despite its findings the court denied injunctive relief. Due to the uncertainty of the state of the law with regard to delegation of EIS preparation and with regard to the necessity of supplemental EIS's, the court concluded that plaintiffs are not likely to succeed on the merits. Furthermore, although construction is progressing, the court held that, in light of plaintiffs' failure to file suit until 10 months after circulation of the EIS, irreparable harm would not result if construction is not halted. The court specifically rejected the idea that any violation of NEPA warranted an injunction.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney William Brown (D. Mass.); Nicholas S. Nadzo (Land and Natural Resources Division).

#### ENVIRONMENT

NEPA; SECONDARY IMPACTS MUST BE CONSIDERED IN THRESHOLD DETERMINATION OF WHETHER EIS REQUIRED; SECTION 404 OF WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT APPLIES TO AREAS OF SALT MEADOW GRASS.

Conservation Council of North Carolina, et al. v. Col. Albert Costanzo, et al. (Civil No. 74-22-CIV-7, E.D. N.C., July 24, 1975; D.J. 90-1-4-957).

Bald Head Island lies at the point where the Cape Fear River enters the Atlantic Ocean. It consists principally of dunes and marshes with some stands of pine. A private developer proposed a second home community with an ultimate population of approximately 14,000 people. The island was previously uninhabited.

The development plan included the construction of a marina through excavation of a boat basin connected by a channel to the Cape Fear River. A permit from the Corps of Engineers was required. The District Engineer concluded that, with certain environmental protection conditions included in the permit, the marina construction would not have a significant effect on the human environment. In making this determination, and the implicit determination that Section 404 was not applicable to the fill activities, the Corps took the position that its permit jurisdiction was limited to areas below the mean high water line.

The court concluded that the Corps had improperly limited its scope of concern. As to the EIS, the court found that the threshold determination must include an analysis of the secondary consequences of permitting construction of the marina. The most obvious of those consequences is the acceleration of development of the island. As to Section 404, the court relied upon NRDC v. Callaway (D. D.C. March 27, 1975) for the conclusion that the Corps' permit authority is not limited by the mean high water but extends to wetlands regularly or periodically inundated by a navigable waterway. An evidentiary test of whether the area is subject to Section 404 is the presence of vegetation which requires saturated soil for growth and reproduction.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Bruce  
Johnson (E.D. N.C.).

\* \* \* \* \*